
Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate 
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  107-117 Botchergate 

Cumbria  CA1 1RD  
Tel 01228 227354  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
 

  

 

 

13 January 2022 

 
 
To:   The Chair and Members of the Cumbria 

LGPS Local Pension Board 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 

CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION BOARD 
 
 
A meeting of the Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board will be held as follows:  
 
 Date: Friday 21 January 2022 

 Time: 1.00 pm 

 Place: Conference Room A, Cumbria House, Carlisle, CA1 1RD 

 
 
Dawn Roberts 
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services 
 
 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Anthony Farrar 
Direct Line: 07909 932418 
Email: anthony.farrar@cumbria.gov.uk 
 
 

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats 
 

 
 
 

Serving the People of Cumbria 

 
 



 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Employer Representatives   Employee (Member) Representatives 
 
Lord Roger Liddle– CCC      Deirdre Burnet - Pensioner (Chair) 
Kerry Powell – Other (Vice-Chair)   Karen Thomson – Deferred 
Giles Archibald - District Representative  Karen Wilson  - Active 

 
 
 
 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –  
www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/  
 
Background Papers 
 
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/


 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

To receive any apologies for absence. 
 
2   TERMS OF REFERENCE AND MEMBERSHIP 

 
To note the Terms of Reference and membership of the Board. 
 
3   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

 
Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises 
 
1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit or gain.  
 
2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 

the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 

a beneficial interest) and the authority  
 

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and  

 
 (b) Which has not been fully discharged.  
 
4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.   
 
5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 

the authority for a month or longer.   
 
6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
 
 (a) The landlord is the authority; and 
 
 (b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest. 
 
7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 
 

(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the  area of 



 

the authority; and 
 
(b) Either –  
 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered. 
 
Note 
 
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).  
 
4   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether there are any items on the agenda for which the press and public 
should be excluded. 
 
5   MINUTES 

 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Cumbria Local Pension Board meeting 
held on  14 October 2021  (copy enclosed). 
 
6   SCHEDULE OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
To note the Schedule of future meetings (copy enclosed). 
 
7   OVERSIGHT OF PENSION COMMITTEE DECISIONS AND OTHER MATTERS 

 
To receive an update from the Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)  

 
8   LPPA UPDATE 

 
Jo Darbyshire, Managing Director, Local Pensions Partnership has been invited to make a 
presentation to the Board.  

 
9   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
To note that the next meeting will be held on 13 April 2022. 
 
 
 
 



 

PART II: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC 
 
10   REVIEW OF ADMINISTRATION MATTERS 

 
To receive an update from the Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)  

 
11   LPPA PRESENTATION 

 
Jane Watkinson, Operations Manager, Local Pensions Partnership has been invited to make 
a presentation to the Board.  

 
12   VERBAL UPDATE ON EMERGING ISSUES 

 
To receive a general verbal update from Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer). 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



    

Agreed by Cumbria County Council 10th January 2019 
 

Part 2P: Cumbria Local Pension Board  

1 Summary  

1.1 The Cumbria Local Pension Board is responsible for assisting the 

Administering Authority of the Cumbria Local Government Scheme to comply 

with all relevant legislative requirements and to ensure the effective governance 

of the scheme.  

2 Functions of the Local Pension Board  

2.1 The functions of the Local Pension Board are to: 

(a) Assist the Administering Authority of the Cumbria Local Government 

Pension Scheme secure compliance with:  

(i) The regulations covering administration of a Local Government 

Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’); and  

(ii) Other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the 

LGPS; and  

(iii) The requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to 

the LGPS; and  

(b) To ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the 

LGPS.  

2.2 The Board must have a policy and framework to meet the knowledge and 

understanding requirements of section 248A of the Pensions Act 2004.  

2.3 In its role in assisting the Administering Authority as described above, the Local 

Pension Board shall report at least twice yearly to the Pensions Committee on 

matters reviewed and suggestions for their consideration.  

2.4 Where the Board is concerned that due consideration has not been given to 

matters of non-compliance the Board may submit a report for consideration by 

the Audit and Assurance Committee as the body designated by the 

Administering Authority with the capacity to investigate such matters on its 

behalf.  

2.5 The Board is constituted under the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and the 

Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 

7

Agenda Item 2



    

Agreed by Cumbria County Council 10th January 2019 
 

2014 and is therefore not subject to the requirements of S.101 of the Local 

Government Act 1972.  

2.6 The Board has no remit as a decision making body but is established to assist 

the Administration Authority to fulfil its functions which shall be deemed to cover 

all aspects of governance and administration of the Pensions Fund.  

3 Operating Structure and Codes of Conduct of the Local Pension Board  

3.1 The operating structure and codes of conduct of the Local Pension Board is as 

follows:  

(a) The Board will be quorate if 25% of designated members (i.e. two) are in 

attendance, with at least one member representing employers and at least 

one member representing scheme members.  

(b) Prior to appointment to the Board all members will be required to sign up 

to the Board’s Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest Policy. As a body 

representing the public interest the Code of Conduct and Conflicts of 

Interest Policy of members of the Local Pension Board will be aligned to 

those applicable to members of the Pensions Committee.  

(c) The Board will meet as a minimum twice a year. Meetings will be held 

during normal working hours and will predominantly be held within County 

boundaries.  

(d) Where required, a minimum of two Board members (one from the member 

representatives and one from the employer representatives) or the 

Administering Authority can request a special meeting be convened. 

Notice of ten working days must be given.  

(e) As a non-decision-making body the Board has no authority to establish 

working parties / subgroups.  

(f) Each member shall have an equal vote and should it be required, the Chair 

will have the casting vote.  

4 Commissioning of Service providers and Advisors  

4.1 All members of the Local Pension Board have the right to access the support of 

the experienced Local Government Pension Scheme Independent Advisors, 

however due regard has to be taken of securing value for money and as such 

whether in the first instance officers of the County Council could provide the 

assistance required.  

8



    

Agreed by Cumbria County Council 10th January 2019 
 

4.2 Items of expenditure by the Board must have prior approval from the Section 

151 Officer.  

5 Role of Officers  

5.1 Reasonable secretarial and professional support will be provided by officers of 

the Administering Authority. Costs associated with this will be directly charged 

to the Pension Fund.  

6 Publication and Data Protection  

6.1 As a general principle, meetings will be open to the public.  

6.2 Paper or electronic versions (as requested) of all agendas and papers will be 

provided to all members of the Local Pension Board prior to a meeting. The 

Chair can accept that items be tabled on the day should such a need arise.  

6.3 As a matter of policy the Pensions Fund has adopted the principles of 

paperless working, therefore as a matter of course public access to all 

agendas, public papers and minutes etc. will be available on the Council’s 

website. On request, alternative media versions are available.  

6.4 The County Council as the Administration Authority is the registered data 

controller of the Cumbria LGPS, and as such all policies and practices in this 

regard applicable within the County Council are directly applicable to the Board.  

7 Membership  

7.1 Equal representation between scheme employers and scheme members is 

required. The membership of the Cumbria Local Pension Board will comprise 

three scheme member representatives and three scheme employer 

representatives.  

7.2 Appointment of Board members – To ensure an open and transparent 

selection process and to ensure the administering authority meets its obligation 

to ensure appointed members have the capacity the selection process will be 

through application, matching to a role profile and interview. The appointment 

panel will consist of the Section 151 Officer, Monitoring Officer and Portfolio 

Holder for Finance. Appointments will be for four years (or, in the case of 

elected members for the remainder of their current term of office) and there will 

be no limit on the number of times a member of the board can seek to be 

reappointed. The three employer representatives will be allocated 1 to the 

County Council; 1 to the District Councils and 1 for all other employers in the 

9



    

Agreed by Cumbria County Council 10th January 2019 
 

Fund. The three scheme member representatives will be selected to ensure all 

membership groups within the Fund are considered.  

7.3 Appointment of the Chair/Vice Chair – the administering authority will appoint 

the Chair and the Vice Chair. The roles will be split with one being a scheme 

member representative and one being a scheme employer representative and 

this will be alternated on a two yearly cycle.  

7.4 Reimbursement of reasonable travel expenses for attendance at meetings and 

training sessions will be in line with the County Council’s agreed policies and 

rates for elected members. All such costs will be met directly by the Pension 

Fund.  

7.5 Relevant knowledge and capacity – the administering authority must ensure 

that each person appointed to the Local Pension Board has the relevant 

knowledge and the capacity to represent the employers or members (as 

appropriate) of the Pensions Fund. Initially this will be done through selection 

but, following appointment, it is a member’s individual responsibility to ensure 

they attend sufficient training to enable them to continue to fulfil the knowledge 

and capacity requirements. Full training will be provided and all reasonable 

costs will be met by the Pensions Fund. To ensure compliance with the above a 

general level of attendance at meetings and training events is required.  

8 Substitution 

8.1 Substitutes are permitted and sufficient substitutes will be appointed to ensure 

that the representation described in 7.2 can be maintained whenever a 

substitution is required.  

8.2 In recognition of the requirements relating to relevant knowledge and capacity, 

substitutes must be subject to the same appointment process as Board 

members detailed in 7.2 and the relevant knowledge and capacity requirements 

as set out at 7.5. Each substitute will be appointed for a four year term (or, in 

the case of elected members for the remainder of their current term of office) 

and there is no limit on the number of times the substitute can seek to be 

reappointed. 

8.3 Reimbursement of reasonable travel expenses for attendance at meetings and 

training sessions will be in line with the County Council’s agreed policies and 

rates for elected members. All such costs will be met directly by the Pension 

Fund.  

 

10



CUMBRIA LGPS LOCAL PENSION BOARD 
 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board held on Thursday, 
14 October 2021 at 1.00 pm at Conference Room A, Cumbria House, Carlisle, CA1 
1RD 
 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Mrs D Burnet (Chair) 
 

Mrs K Powell (Vice-Chair) 
Ms K Wilson 
 

Mrs S Entwistle 
 

 
Also in Attendance:- 
 
Ms R Blundell - Operations Director - Local Pension Partnership 

Administration (LPPA) 
Ms A Clark - Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services 

(Deputy S151 Officer – Pensions) 
Mr P George - Group Finance Manager - Pensions, Investments and 

Insurance 
Ms L Taylor - Finance Manager - Pensions Investments and 

Governance 
Ms G Welbourn - Technical Finance Officer - Pensions 
Ms A McGuinness - Finance Manager - Pensions 

 
 -  

 
  

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

 

 

 
76 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Ms K Thomson, Mr G Archibald and Lord 
R Liddle.   
 
77 TERMS OF REFERENCE AND MEMBERSHIP 
 
The Terms of Reference were noted.   
 
In accordance with the Board’s Terms of Reference, Lord Roger Liddle had appointed 
as an Employer Scheme representative for Cumbria County Council. Lord Liddle had 
replaced Mr D Southward who had come to the end of his four year tenure.   
 

11

Agenda Item 5



 
 
 

2 

Members were informed that Ms D Burnet had been appointed Chair and Ms K Powell 
as Vice Chair for the ensuing two years.  This was in accordance with the Board’s 
Terms of Reference. 
 
Mrs S Entwistle replaced Ms K Thomson as a member of the Board for this meeting 
only. 
 
Mr P Turner, a member of the Cumbria Pensions Committee, sat in the public gallery 
to observe the meeting. 
 
78 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
 
There were no disclosures of interest made on this occasion. 
 
79 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED, that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 

consideration of: 
 

Agenda Item No 10 – Review of Administration Matters; 
Agenda Item No 11 – LPPA Presentation; and  
Agenda Item No 12 – Verbal Update on Emerging Issues  
 
by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 as the reports contain information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information). 

 
80 MINUTES 
 
Corrections: 
 
Page 11, Minute 65, first paragraph, 2nd line. Replace ‘Jelf Insurance’ with ‘Mercer 
Limited’. 
 
Page 14, Minute 69, third paragraph, 1st line. Delete sentence to the end after ‘on’ 
and replace with ‘matters the Pensions Committee has asked the Board to review on 
its behalf’. 
 
RESOLVED,  that subject to the corrections above, the minutes of the previous 

meeting held on 1 July 2021 be agreed as a true and accurate record.  
 
81 SCHEDULE OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
Members noted the schedule of meetings of the Cumbria LGPS Local Pension Board. 
 
The Chair asked officers to review the Board’s meeting dates and how they fit in with 
the Cumbria Pensions Committee meeting dates. This was to enable Board members 

12



 
 
 

3 

to have information as far in advance as possible. This would be brought back to a 
future meeting of the Board for consideration. 
 
RESOLVED that, officers review future Board meeting dates and this be brought 

back to the Board for discussion at a future meeting. 
 
82 REVIEW OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE DECISIONS AND OTHER MATTERS 
 
Members considered a report from the Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) which 
updated them on all aspects of the governance and administration of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The report summarised the work conducted, 
and decisions made by the Committee at its meeting held on 21 September 2021, in 
order that Board Members could review these as part of their legal responsibility to 
members of the Fund. It also advised of other matters arising, including regulatory 
changes, since last reported to the Board.   
 
The Technical Finance Officer took members through the report. Members’ attention 
was drawn to the Draft Annual Report and Accounts to 31 March 2021 which had 
been approved for publication. It was welcomed that Cumbria had been one of a small 
number of local authorities that had met the deadline to publish unqualified audited 
accounts by 30 September. No legal breaches had been reported to the Pensions 
Regulator. Although there had been no risks added to the Risk Register, members 
were given details about the two emerging risks: Local Government Reform and 
Climate Change.  
 
Members were informed about the summary of findings from The Pensions 
Regulator’s Public Service Pension Schemes – Governance and Administration 
Survey 2020-21. A number of highlights from the survey were presented to members. 
This included business continuity plans in place prior to the COVID 19 pandemic and 
financial risks and opportunities arising from climate change. It was welcomed that in 
terms of cyber security, Cumbria LGPS had all 14 controls in place.  
 
Members were provided with an update on the McCloud Resolution. The Department 
for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) was expected to release its 
response to the consultation shortly and the Board would be advised when further 
information was available. The Fund had responded to two consultations (Special 
Severance Payments and The Pensions Regulator’s Consolidated Code of Practice) 
and these were detailed for the Board.  

It was stated that at its September 2021 meeting, the Pensions Committee had 
approved the recommendation which had requested that the Board monitor the 
Fund’s response to the Good Governance Review and then report back on this to the 
Committee.  
 
In terms of Information Security Arrangements and cyber security, a member stated 
that there had not been any movement from the current risk score to the target risk 
score. She queried whether it was feasible to attain the target risk score and what 
would it entail to achieve it. The Group Finance Manager – Pensions, Investments 
and Insurance explained that the Fund’s target risk score reflected that previously 

13



 
 
 

4 

shown in the County Council’s Risk Register.  It was noted that a significant proportion 
of the Fund’s data was held by the Local Pensions Partnership - Administration 
(LPPA), who had Information Security Arrangements as an amber risk. The 
Operations Director - LPPA explained how a recent audit had identified this as an 
amber risk. 
 
A member asked whether the Fund should have its own risk assessment and its own 
information security arrangements rather than rely on the County Council’s 
arrangements. The Group Finance Manager – Pensions, Investments and Insurance 
undertook to review this and report back to a future meeting of the Board. 
 
It was noted that the risk score for pensions administration processes remained higher 
than target this quarter. The Group Finance Manager – Pensions, Investments and 
Insurance explained that the risk would have reduced but there had been issues in 
the last quarter with retirement and deaths cases which had exceeded the target of 
10 working days. Members were reassured that, based on performance during the 
current quarter, the risk was predicted to reduce to target by the Board’s next meeting. 
 
A member, not present at the meeting, had asked a question via the Chair. It was 
queried whether the Fund should recognise biodiversity as an emerging risk. The 
Group Finance Manager - Pensions, Investments and Insurance explained that 
although officers were mindful of this emerging risk, the Risk Register would not be 
amended at this time. 
 
In turning to Local Government Reform, a member asked that at its next meeting, the 
Board be provided with information to enable members to understand the associated 
risks, in particular, what were the key issues in moving to two local authorities and 
what would be the administration burden. 
 
In relation to Climate Change, a member was keen for the Board, with its governance 
overview responsibilities, to review KPIs and identify what the Fund should measure. 
The Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services advised that the Fund was 
working with partner Funds and Border to Coast on this matter. She outlined the work 
taking place and advised that a verbal update would be given at the Board’s next 
meeting. 
 
A member requested training on Taskforce on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures 
(TCFD) for the Pensions Committee and Board members. This would be delivered in 
due course. 
 
The Chair proposed the recommendations as set out in the report. 
 
RESOLVED, that the Board 
 

(1) Note the decisions approved and other matters considered by the 
Pensions Committee at the meeting held on 21 September 2021. 

 
83 GOOD GOVERNANCE REVIEW-UPDATE 

14



 
 
 

5 

 
Members considered a report from the Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer) which 
updated them on the final Phase III Report on Good Governance in the LGPS, which 
was published by the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) in February 2021.  The SAB 
Report made a number of recommendations to improve governance within Funds and 
across the LGPS. The report summarised the recommendations within the Good 
Governance Review and set out the how the Fund proposed (subject to approval by 
Pensions Committee) to implement some of the recommendations ahead of the 
production of revised Regulations or statutory guidance in order to further enhance 
governance within the Fund. 
 
The Group Finance Manager - Pensions, Investments and Insurance guided 
members through the report. He explained how the Board was kept up to date with 
the work that the SAB had commissioned regarding a review of Good Governance in 
the LGPS and that at the last Board meeting, the findings of the final report and 
recommendations had been reported. He noted that to date, there had been no 

comment from the DLUHC on when the recommendations in the final report would be 
actioned but the Board had noted that where possible, Cumbria should seek to 
implement some of them before any statutory guidance or revised Regulations were 
issued. 
 
At the 21 September 2021 Pensions Committee meeting, members had welcomed 
the proposal from the Board’s Chair, that the Board would be responsible for 
reviewing the Fund’s response to the Good Governance Review.  
 
The Board was informed of the recommendations from the Good Governance Review 
which had been incorporated into the Fund’s 2020/21 Annual Report. Officers were 
waiting for the response from DLUHC on proposed updated scheme regulations or 
statutory guidance to enable further recommendations to be responded to. Board 
Members would be updated at future meetings on this matter.  
 
The outgoing Chair of the Board welcomed the progress made to date and looked 
forward to the guidance being received. 
 

RESOLVED, that the Board 
 

(1) Noted the update on actions to be taken to address the findings of the 
Good Governance review prior to the implementation of statutory guidance 
by the DLUHC. 

 
84 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting will be held on 21 January 2022 at 1pm. 
 
85 REVIEW OF ADMINISTRATION MATTERS 
 

15



 
 
 

6 

Members considered a report from the Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer), 
which detailed the more specific items of note within the Local Pension Board arena 
relating to Pensions’ Administration matters. 

Officers provided detailed responses to member questions on the deadlines that 
employers must adhere to for their payment of contributions, targets relating to deficit 
payments and metrics monitoring of the performance of the AVC administration. A 
short discussion took place on the performance of the AVC providers. 
 
RESOLVED,  that the Board note the Pension Administration matters detailed in the 

report. 
 
86 LPPA PRESENTATION 
 
Members received a verbal update from Ms R Blundell, Operations Director - Local 
Pension Partnership Administration (LPPA).  The update included :- 

 

 Performance in Quarter 1 and 2 and issues raised within both Quarters 

 Progress and challenges related to the implementation of new Pensions 
Administration software 

 LPPA’s website update 

 Preparations for the implementation of the McCloud resolution, including 
recruitment for the additional workloads 
 

A member requested that LPPA’s McCloud communications and project plans be 
circulated to the Board. 
 
The Operations Director - Local Pension Partnership Administration answered a 
member question on which organisation which would pay the administration costs for 
cases affected by the McCloud case 
 
RESOLVED that, the position be noted. 
 
87 VERBAL UPDATE ON EMERGING ISSUES 
 
The Senior Manager - Pensions and Financial Services updated the Board on current 
emerging issues, which included the impact of Local Government Reform on the 
LGPS, the Triennial Valuation and the training session to be held at the next Board 
meeting which would be a refresher on roles and responsibilities in the LGPS. 
 
The Board was advised that the next meeting of the Cumbria Pensions Forum would 
take place on 11 November 2021, at Penrith Rugby Club. 
 
RESOLVED that, the position be noted. 
 
 

The meeting ended at 2.30 pm 
  

 
 

16



 
CUMBRIA LGPS Local Pension Board – SCHEDULE OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
 
 

Date Location 

Wednesday 13 April 2022 at 1pm Conference Room A, Cumbria House 

Friday 15 July 2022 at 1pm Conference Room A, Cumbria House 

Tuesday 4 October 2022 at 1pm Conference Room A, Cumbria House 

Tuesday 17 January 2023 at 1pm Conference Room A, Cumbria House 

Friday 31 March 2023 at 1pm Conference Room A, Cumbria House 

17

Agenda Item 6



 

18



 

 
 

CUMBRIA LOCAL PENSION BOARD 

Meeting date: 21 January 2022 

From:  Pam Duke, Director of Finance (s151 Officer) 

 
 
 

OVERSIGHT OF PENSIONS COMMITTEE DECISIONS AND 

OTHER MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The role of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority in all 
aspects of the governance and administration of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (LGPS). 

1.2 Cumbria County Council, as Administering Authority for the Cumbria 
LGPS (“the Fund”), has delegated its functions, under Section 101 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 to the Cumbria Pensions Committee 
(the ‘Committee’).  

1.3 Section 4 of this report summarises the work conducted, and decisions 
made by the Committee at its meeting held on 10 December 2021, in 
order that Board Members can oversee the governance of these 
decisions as part of their legal responsibility to members of the Fund.   

1.4 This report also advises Members of other matters arising, including 
regulatory changes, since last reported to the Board. Pension 
administration issues have been highlighted in a separate report in 
Part 2 of this meeting to allow for a more detailed focus on these items. 

2.0 STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

2.1 The Council’s vision is to be “A Council that works with residents, 
businesses, communities and other organisations to deliver the best 
services possible within the available resources”. As part of the 
approach to delivering this vision the Council aims to “Put customers 
at the heart of everything we do”. 
 

2.2 Good governance and risk management will aid the Fund in ensuring 
its regulatory responsibilities are met, a good service is provided to 
scheme members, costs are controlled, and its required investment 

19

Agenda Item 7



 

return is achieved. Cost control and the investment performance of the 
Fund will have a direct impact on the funding level and therefore all 
employers’ contribution rates. This will have a direct impact on the 
Fund Employers’ revenue budgets.  

3.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Board is recommended to: - 

3.1 Note the decisions approved and other matters considered by the 
Pensions Committee at the meeting held on 10 December 2021 and 
request further information and/or feedback to the Pensions Committee 
as appropriate. 

4.0 PENSIONS COMMITTEE DECISIONS 

4.1 The Cumbria Pensions Committee is the delegated decision-making body 
for the Fund, and as such its decisions are of particular relevance to the 
Cumbria Local Pension Board (LPB or ‘the Board’.).  It is the role of the 
Board to assist the Administering Authority of the Cumbria Local 
Government Pension Scheme to secure compliance with: - 

a) The regulations covering administration of a local government pension 
scheme; 

b) Other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the 
LGPS; and 

c) The requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the 
LGPS. 

 
4.2 The Board is also required to assist the Administering Authority to ensure 

the effective and efficient governance and administration of the LGPS. 

4.3 Pensions Committee papers are currently available through SharePoint for 
all Board members to access at the same time as they are sent out to 
Pensions Committee Members. This enables any questions/queries to be 
raised by the Board either at or before the relevant Pensions Committee 
meeting.  Reporting in this way should allow a more effective oversight 
process to operate.  Appendix 1 to this report presents the recommendations 
agreed by Committee at the on 10 December 2021; full details are available 
online. 

4.4 In addition to the quarterly monitoring reports Parts 1 & 2, the December 
meeting considered the following reports: 

 Update from Cumbria LGPS Local Pensions Board; 

 Training Update and future planned training; 

 Half-Year Update of the Pensions Fund Business Plan & Administration 
Budget 2021/22; 

 Preparations for 2022 Triennial Valuation; 

20



 

 Responsible Investment – future reporting requirements; and 

 Investment Sub-Group Activity report to November 2021.  

4.5 All recommendations within the papers presented to the December meeting 
were agreed by the Committee. See Appendix 1 for additional commentary. 

5.0 OTHER MATTERS 

Legal Breaches: 
 

5.1 There were no breaches reported to the Pensions Regulator during the 
period to September 2021.  Non-compliance events arising from late 
payments of pension contributions and failure to provide the Fund with 
monthly member payroll data are presented in Paper 10 on this agenda. 
 
Risk: 
 

5.2 Risk management is a key element of good governance for any 
organisation. Officers of the Fund continually review and monitor risks 
bringing any significant emerging issues to Members’ attention throughout 
the year, with Pensions Committee formally reviewing these at each 
meeting. This quarterly review process ensures consistent and timely 
Member oversight of risk monitoring and thereby provides enhanced due 
diligence in this regard.  
 

5.3 The current risk register at January 2022 is presented at Appendix 2. No 
risks have been added to or removed from the register between October 
2021 and January 2022. However, the Fund will reassess the risks 
associated with the COVID-19 Impact on Pensions Administration and the 
COVID-19 Impact on Investments in March 2022 following the winter period 
and developments regarding the Omicron variant. 

5.4 Two risk scores have been amended from the position reported to the 
Pensions Committee and Local Pension Board last quarter: 

 
Information Security Arrangements – Following discussions at the 
September Pensions Committee and October Local Pension Board, the 
target “likelihood” score for this risk arising has been increased from a 2 
(“Unlikely”) to a 3 (“Possible”). This reflects the Committee and Board 
opinions that, despite best endeavours to mitigate the risk by Cumbria 
County Council and LPPA, the likelihood of a cyber incident affecting the 
Fund is increasing. This is not unique to the Fund – in October the Director 
of GCHQ noted that the number of ransomware attacks on British institutions 
has doubled in the last year. 
 
The impact of the risk arising remains at 5 (“most severe”) reflecting the 
significant impact that a sustained and substantial cyber incident could have 
on the Fund. Therefore, the total target score for this risk has increased from 
10 to 15. 
 

21



 

Additionally, the Fund is currently commissioning work to be undertaken to 
assess its cyber security and its readiness for a cyber incident. It is expected 
that a presentation will be made to the Local Pension Board in due course 
as to the findings of this review.  
 
Pensions Administration Process – This entry in the risk register notes the 
risk of delays in scheme members entering into pension or receiving other 
services from the Fund in an untimely manner. Section 4 of  Agenda item 10 
includes details of another positive set of results for the quarter from LPPA in 
terms of performance against the key indicators. Given this continual high 
level of performance by LPPA (noting some isolated issues in the quarter to 
June 2021 as detailed to Pensions Committee in September and this Board 
in October) the likelihood of this risk arising has been reduced from a 3 
(“possible”) to a 2 (“unlikely”). The impact of this score remains at 3 
(“moderate”) and therefore, the total score for this risk has decreased from 9 
to 6. 

 
5.5 The risk scores for all risks have been reviewed and no amendments have 

been considered necessary.  
 

5.6 There is currently one risk assessed as “red” associated with information 
security arrangements. Additionally, there are 2 “amber” and 14 “green” 
rated risks.  
 

5.7 In addition to the risks detailed above, the comments associated with some 
risks have been amended to reflect progress over the past quarter. 

 
Pensions Committee:  

5.8 The Board has been tasked with monitoring future progress against the data 
quality improvement plan and actions taken to improve data quality.  

Data Quality: 

5.9 Data held within Cumbria LGPS continues to be of a good quality.  This is 
evidenced by the scoring mechanism as set out by the Pensions Regulator. 
The Local Pensions Partnership (LPPA) quarterly performance report 
(attached as Appendix 1 to Paper 10) provides tPR data scoring information 
at pages 38 & 39.  This notes that the Scheme reported 97.8% of its 
common data (e.g., NI number, address etc.) was present and accurate and 
the scheme specific conditional data (e.g., employment details, contribution 
history etc.) was scored as being 94.2% present and accurate, continuing 
the upward trend. 

5.10 The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) exercise continues to be carried out by 
the Fund at six monthly intervals.  The Fund received the latest cohort of 
results in December, which identified only fifteen cases that the Fund wasn’t 
aware of (ten pensioners and five deferred). These cases have been notified 
to LPPA for review. 

 
 

22



 

Investment management: 
 

5.11 The Investment Sub Group (ISG) report from the November meeting was 
included in the reports to the December meeting of the Pensions Committee, 
with a summary in Appendix 1.   

5.12 Highlights include the Fund outperforming against its benchmark during the 
12 months ending 30 September 2021 with a return of 16.1% versus 11.3% 
for the benchmark; the winding down of passive currency hedging and the 
news that Alistair Sutherland will be stepping down from his role as 
Independent Advisor to the Fund after the March 2022 Pensions Committee.  

Training:  
 
5.13 Board Members continue to be notified of relevant training events (internal 

and external) as and when they arise and they are encouraged to attend. 
There will be a training session after today’s formal meeting which will 
provide an overview of the roles and responsibilities of the Board and 
Committee, which will be particularly helpful for the newer Board Members 
and a serve as a refresher for longer standing Members. 
 

5.14 Guidance and training material can be accessed by Board Members via the 
link below to the dedicated Cumbria Local Pension Board Sharepoint site:- 

https://cumbria.sharepoint.com/sites/CLGPS/Shared%20Documents/Forms/
AllItems.aspx 

Membership: 

5.15 In accordance with the Board’s Terms of Reference a selection process was 
undertaken for one of the Scheme Employer positions as the existing 
Member had completed a four-year term.   Officers are pleased to confirm 
that Kerry Powell was successfully re-appointed as representative on the 
Board for Other Employers for a further four years.  

Border to Coast Pensions Partnership Ltd’s (BCPP) Responsible 
Investment Policy and Corporate Voting Guidelines 

5.16 In line with good practice BCPP has undertaken an annual review of its 
Responsible Investment Policy and Corporate Voting Guidelines.  The 
updated Policy and Guideline documents were considered by the BCPP 
Joint Committee at its meeting on 24 November and members supported 
taking the revised policies to partner fund Pensions Committees for 
comment and for them to consider adoption of the principles for their own RI 
policies in line with industry best practice.   

5.17 The changes (which are summarised below at 5.17.1 and 5.17.2) do not 
materially alter the content of the documents. As such, as in previous years, 
the underlying principles set out in BCPP’s RI and Corporate Voting 
documents remain consistent with the Fund’s Investment Strategy 
Statement. The full BCPP Responsible Investment policy and Corporate 
Governance and Voting Guidelines can be accessed via the following link 
(on pages 157-180 of the Agenda Pack): 

23

https://cumbria.sharepoint.com/sites/CLGPS/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx
https://cumbria.sharepoint.com/sites/CLGPS/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx


 

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/g11922/Public%20reports%
20pack%2010th-Dec-
2021%2009.30%20Cumbria%20Pensions%20Committee.pdf?T=10 

5.17.1 Summary of changes made to BCPP’s Responsible Investment Policy: 
 

Section  Page Type of 
Change 

Rationale 

Introduction 2 Addition To include wording to reflect the 
importance of diversity of thought and 
experience on company Boards. 

Integrating RI 
into 
investment 
decisions – 
Real Estate 
(5.4) 

5 Addition To include Real Estate as an asset class in 
recognition that BCPP is in the process of 
designing and building Real Estate 
investment funds.  

Integrating RI 
into 
investment 
decisions - 
Climate Change 
(5.6) 

6 Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Addition 
 

To update the policy to reflect that BCPP 
now has a Climate Change Policy (as 
Members will recall this was circulated to 
the Committee and Board for comment in 
July this year before its final publication in 
September) and that the detail on climate 
change is now included in that document 
rather than the RI Policy document. 
 
The wording in the section reflects BCPP’s 
policy of engagement rather than 
divestment. Like the Climate Change 
Policy, it also notes that “there may be 
specific instances when [BCPP] will look to 
sell or not invest in some industries based 
on investment criteria, the investment time 
horizon and the likelihood for success in 
influencing company strategy and 
behaviour. Using these criteria and due to 
the potential for stranded assets, [BCPP] 
interpret this to cover pure coal and tar 
sands companies and will therefore not 
invest in these companies. Any companies 
excluded will be monitored and assessed 
for progress and potential reinstatement at 
least annually.” 

Stewardship (6) 6 Update Updated to reflect the revisions to the 
Stewardship Code and BCPP’s position in 
relation to becoming a signatory to it. 

Engagement 
Themes (6.2.1) 

10 
 

Addition 
 

Inclusion of a new section describing 
BCPP’s process for reviewing priority 
engagement themes (recognising that 
BCPP is unable to engage on every issue 
but noting that BCPP does, however, 

24

https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/g11922/Public%20reports%20pack%2010th-Dec-2021%2009.30%20Cumbria%20Pensions%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/g11922/Public%20reports%20pack%2010th-Dec-2021%2009.30%20Cumbria%20Pensions%20Committee.pdf?T=10
https://councilportal.cumbria.gov.uk/documents/g11922/Public%20reports%20pack%2010th-Dec-2021%2009.30%20Cumbria%20Pensions%20Committee.pdf?T=10


 

Section  Page Type of 
Change 

Rationale 

engage more widely via various channels 
including LAPFF and their external 
managers). 

 

5.17.2 Summary of changes to BCPP’s Corporate Governance & Voting 
Guidelines: 
 

Section  Page Type of 
Change 

Rationale 

Diversity  5 Revision 
 
 
 
 
Addition  
 

To amend the expectation relating to 
gender diversity on company boards in 
developed markets to read 33% rather than 
30%. 
 
Additional narrative has been included to 
strengthen BCPP’s voting intention on 
ethnic diversity at FTSE 100 companies 
(specifically BCPP will vote against the 
chair of the nomination committee at FTSE 
100 companies where the Board does not 
have at least one person from an ethnic 
minority background, unless there are 
mitigating circumstances or plans to 
address this have been disclosed). 

Long-term 
incentives 

8 
 

Clarification To make the distinction between 
expectations relating to executives and 
those relating to the rest of workforce. 

Directors’ 
contracts 

8 Clarification To clarify the expectation that executive 
pensions should be aligned with those of 
the majority of the workforce. 

Lobbying 10 Addition 
 
 

To reflect that expectations of companies 
regarding transparency on lobbying 
activities relating to climate change and the 
alignment of a company’s climate change 
policy with the industry association(s) it 
belongs to. 

Shareholder 
proposals 

12 Clarification 
 

To clarify that, when considered 
appropriate, BCPP will support shareholder 
proposals requesting reasonable action 
that is in shareholders’ best interests. 

Climate change 12 Addition To strengthen BCPP’s voting stance in 
relation to climate change through the 
inclusion of Climate Action 100+ net zero 
benchmark indicators. 

 

25



 

5.18 The Pensions Committee considered the BCPP RI Policy and Corporate 
Voting Guidelines at its meeting on 10 December and agreed to note the 
changes.  The Fund’s ISS will be reviewed in March 2022 and no material 
changes are expected to be required in relation to the changes to the BCPP 
policies.  The underlying principle of the Fund’s ISS remains the 
maximisation of the long-term return on the Fund’s investments within 
acceptable risk parameters (including, but not limited to, environment, social 
and governance (ESG) factors).  

Responsible Investment – future reporting requirements 

5.18 The Pensions Committee were provided with a brief overview of anticipated 
future changes to LGPS reporting requirements in relation to Responsible 
Investment (RI) at Item 14 on their agenda.  The report noted that the scale 
and nature of the expected changes will require additional resource e.g. to 
undertake scenario analysis and to provide key metrics such as quantitative 
measures of emissions for the Fund.  

5.19 RI reporting is an evolving area and this, along with the lack of an industry-
wide agreed approach to obtaining, calculating, estimating or measuring the 
relevant data (and sometimes a lack data itself), poses challenges which the 
Fund (along with the LGPS and wider investment industry) will need to 
address. 

 
5.20 Whilst the details of the new reporting requirements for the LGPS are not yet 

known, indications are that they will be in line with regulations recently 
introduced for private sector pension schemes which require them to report 
in line with the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) 
recommendations.  
 

5.21 This is an evolving area of work and we will keep the resourcing 
requirements under review and report back to the Committee and Board if 
there are any proposed changes. 
 

Local Government Reorganisation (LGR): 

5.19 Officers are currently planning for the impact of Local Government 
Reorganisation on the Cumbria Pension Fund. A formal decision on the 
future construct of the Pension Fund is not expected until the summer of 
2022. However, the Board should note that arrangements are in place to 
ensure that the Pension Fund will continue to pay pensions, collect 
contributions and appropriately invest the Fund’s assets up to and beyond 
the vesting date of 1 April 2023. 

6.0 REGULATORY CHANGES  

6.1 This section of the report provides a summary for Members on recent and 
proposed future changes to legislation and regulations that will impact on the 
LGPS. 

 

26



 

McCloud Resolution 
 
6.2 As previously reported to the Board, the Department for Levelling Up, 

Housing and Communities (DLUHC) has consulted on the proposed 
resolution for the LGPS to the McCloud age discrimination case. DLUHC are 
expected to release its response to this consultation shortly. Pensions 
Committee and the Local Pension Board will be advised when further 
information is available. 

Exit Payment Cap 
 

6.3 As previously reported to the Board, the Government intend to re-legislate to 
limit the amount public sector employers can pay to exit an employee from 
their employment. Officers are awaiting details of new proposals for an exit 
payment cap and will advise the Pensions Committee and Local Pension 
Board when further information is available. 

Other Regulatory Changes 

6.4 There have been no further regulatory changes of note that affect the LGPS 
since the last meeting of the Committee in December. However, there are a 
number of matters that the Fund is maintaining a watching eye on including: 

Pensions Regulator - Code of Practice 
 

6.5 As previously reported to the Pensions Committee, the Pensions Regulator 
has consulted on a proposed new Code of Practice which consolidated 10 of 
the 15 existing Codes of Practice (including CoP14 - Governance and 
Administration of Public Service Pension Schemes) into one new Code.  

6.6 In August 2021, the Pensions Regulator issued an interim response to the 
consultation which highlighted that the majority of respondents had given 
general support to the principle of, wherever possible, setting common 
expectations in relation to all pension schemes. The Pensions Regulator 
noted that a number of respondents (including Cumbria Pension Fund) had 
recommended additional clarity be provided in various areas of the Code, 
specifically relating to the Pension Regulator’s use of the term “governing 
body” for Pension Funds.  

6.7 The Pensions Regulator is currently drafting revisions to the Code of 
Practice based on the responses received from the consultation. The new 
Code is not expected to be laid in Parliament before spring 2022 and 
therefore, the new Code is unlikely to become effective before summer 
2022. Pensions Committee and the Local Pension Board will be kept 
advised on developments in implementing this new Code. 

Future meeting dates & availability 

6.8 During the previous meeting of the Board the Chair asked officers to review 
the Board’s meeting dates and how they fit in with the Cumbria Pensions 
Committee meeting dates. This was to enable Board members to have 
information as far in advance as possible.   
 

27



 

6.9 In response to this Officers have reviewed future Board meeting dates with 
the aim of ensuring Board members are provided with information in a timely 
manner.  Key considerations included: 

 The Terms of Reference of the Local Pension Board;  

 The timing of the receipt of key information from third parties (e.g. the 
LPPA quarterly reports); 

 The importance of the Board having oversight of Committee decisions 
in a timely manner; and 

 Other factors which would impact on the scope to reschedule 
meetings such as the wider Council agenda for public meetings. 

 
6.10 Having reviewed the timeframe of the Board meetings with Democratic 

Services, Officers have concluded that the current timeframe remains 
appropriate but that the concerns raised at previous meetings can be 
addressed through mechanisms such as continuing with the current practice 
of issuing briefing notes on significant matters arising in-between formal 
meetings.  

 
6.11 Additionally, Officers will consider how Board members may be able to 

support the work of the Fund between meetings such as through 
undertaking deep dives on key and emerging issues or reviewing key 
documents for accessibility and readability etc. 
 

6.12 The next scheduled Board meeting is due to take place on Wednesday 13 
April 2022, at 1pm.  
 

7.0 OPTIONS 

7.1 To either note the work undertaken by the Cumbria Pensions Committee 
and the decisions made at their meeting on 10 December 2021 or request 
further information on the governance arrangements under which decisions 
were made by the Pensions Committee. 

8.0 RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 Improved governance aids the Fund in running efficiently and effectively, 
controlling costs and helps to achieve its actuarially defined investment 
returns.  Cost control and the investment performance of the Fund will have 
a direct impact on the funding level and therefore all employers’ contribution 
rates.  This will have an impact on the Fund Employers’ revenue budgets. 
 

9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from the report. The information 
contained within the report is for the Board’s information. The Board’s 
function is to assist the Administering Authority in all aspects of the 
governance and administration of the LGPS. 
 

28



 

10.0 CONCLUSION 

10.1 The Board’s remit is to provide oversight of the governance of the Fund. To 
do this effectively the Board needs to be aware of the work undertaken and 
decisions made by the Pensions Committee, and of current issues and 
matters arising.  Access and ability to review all papers which demonstrate 
the governance structure surrounding decision-making processes help 
Board members provide assurance that the Fund’s governance is robust and 
fit for purpose. 

 
Pam Duke 
Director of Finance (s.151 Officer) 
 
21 January 2022 
  
 
APPENDICES 
Appendix 1: Decisions made by the Cumbria Pensions Committee on 10 
December 2021. 
Appendix 2: Risk Register for Cumbria LGPS and LPB at January 2022 
 
 
Electoral Division(s): All 
 

 
 

Executive Decision  No 

 

Key Decision  No 

 

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?   N/A 

 

Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?  No 

 

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny? 
If so, give details below. 

 No 

  

 

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been 
undertaken? 

  N/A 

   

 

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?   N/A 

   

 
 
PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
Decisions made by the Cumbria Pensions Committee on 10 December 2021 
are included at Appendix 1. 
 
 

29



 

REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Contact:  
 
Gill Welbourn, Technical Finance Officer – Pensions 07765 221527 
Finance Directorate 
Gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk 

30

mailto:Gill.welbourn@cumbria.gov.uk


  Appendix 1 
 

 
 

 

CUMBRIA PENSIONS COMMITTEE DECISIONS: 10 December 2021 

 
PART I PAPERS 
 

Item 9 (pages 31-42): Update from the Cumbria LGPS Local 
Pension Board 

 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Note the update from the Cumbria Local Pension Board 
 

 

Item 10 (pages 43-56): Training Update and future planned 
training 
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Note progress towards the delivery of the 2021/22 Training Plan. 

 

Item 11 (pages 57-70): Half-Year Update of the Pensions 
Administration Budget 2021/22 & Business Plan 
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Note progress against the approved Business Plan. 
 

2. Note the 2021/22 half year projected outturn position against budget for the 
Cumbria LGPS and forecast overspend of £0.429m (6.6% of the approved 
budget). 
 

31



  Appendix 1 
 

 
 

Item 12 (pages 71-180): Monitoring Report for the Quarter ended 
30 September 2021 
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 

 
1. Receive and note the performance and monitoring of the Fund for the period from 

1 July 2021 to 30 September 2021; 
  

2. Note issues arising relating to the governance of the Fund;  
 

3. Note the Border to Coast Pensions Partnership Ltd (BCPP) shareholder decision, 
relating to the approval for the appointment of Cllr John Holtby as a Shareholder 
Representative NED at BCPP for a second term, taken under delegated powers; 
and 
 

4. Note changes to the Border to Coast Pensions Partnership Ltd (BCPP) 
Responsible Investment Policy and Corporate Governance & Voting Guidelines 
which continue to be aligned with the underlying principles of the Fund’s 
Investment Strategy Statement. 
 

Item 13 (pages 181-188) – Preparations for 2022 Triennial 
Valuation 

 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Note the actions taken to prepare the Fund for the 2022 Triennial Valuation. 
 

Item 14 (pages 189-194) – Responsible Investment – future 
reporting requirements 

 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 
 

1. Note this report. 
 

 

  

CUMBRIA PENSIONS COMMITTEE: 10 December 2021 

 
PART 2 PAPERS 
 

Item 16 (pages 195-200): Half-Year Update of the Pensions 
Administration Budget 2021/22  
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 

 
1. Note the 2021/22 half year projected outturn position against budget for investment 

management fees. 
 

32



  Appendix 1 
 

 
 

Item 17 (pages 201-210): Monitoring Report for the Quarter ended 
30 September 2021 
 
Pensions Committee resolved to:- 

 
1. Receive and note the quarterly monitoring Part 2 items of the Fund for the period 

to 30 September 2021. 
 

2. Support the approval by the Section 151 Officer of the application to join the 
Cumbria Fund from:  
 

 Caterlink Ltd Thornhill Primary School on the basis that a guarantee is 
provided by West Lakes Multi Academy Trust. 

 Caterlink Ltd West Lakes Academy on the basis that a guarantee is 
provided by West Lakes Multi Academy Trust. 

 Caterlink Ltd William Howard on the basis that a guarantee is provided by 
Cumbria Education Trust. 

 Cumbria Teacher Training on the basis that a guarantee is provided by 
Cumbria County Council. 

 
3. Note that it is anticipated that all shareholders in BCPP will be asked to agree to a 

variation to the terms of reference of the BCPP Joint Committee (as set out in the 
Agreement to cooperate in the pooling of Local Government Pensions Scheme 
Investments, known as the “Inter Authority Agreement”) to reduce the quorum for 
that group; and agree that, should the timing of the decision fall outside the 
Committee cycle and cannot be reasonably deferred, the decision be delegated to 
the Director of Finance (s151 Officer) in consultation with the Chair. 
 

Item 18 (pages 211-336): Cumbria LGPS Investment Sub Group 
Activity Report to November 2021 

 
With regards to the Fund’s Investment Strategy, the Pensions Committee resolved 
to:- 
 

1. Note the work undertaken by Officers, Advisors and the ISG on reviewing the 
composition of the Fund’s 35% holdings in public equities; 
 

2. Agree that, subject to the delegations set out in the Constitution (whereby the 
value of an investment or divestment is less than 5% of the portfolio and the assets 
meet the criteria set out in the Investment Strategy the decision is delegated to the 
Section 151 Officer with the assistance of the ISG), both the decision to determine 
the regional allocations within the Fund’s agreed 35% strategic allocation to public 
equities, and the implementation of those allocations (including the approval of 
opportunities for investment) be delegated to the s151 Officer with the assistance 
of the ISG; 

 
3. Agree to the unwinding of the foreign currency hedge, from 50% of listed equity 

investments denominated in overseas currencies, to nil, and reflect the change by 
revisions to the Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) in the Fund Policy Document; 
and 

4. Ask that the ISG continue implementation of the tactical changes required to 
achieve the Fund’s Target Investment Strategy, including assisting the Section 151 
Officer to approve opportunities for investment. 

33



  Appendix 1 
 

 
 

 
With regards to the recruitment of a new Independent Advisor, the Pensions 
Committee resolved to:-  
 

5. Agree to the commencement of the appointment process for an Independent 
Advisor to the Committee. 
 

6. Delegate the appointment of an Independent Advisor to the Director of Finance 
(Section 151 Officer) in consultation with the elected members of the Investment 
Sub Group (Councillors Mel Worth, Nick Marriner and Stan Collins) and supported 
by advice from the Fund’s Independent Advisors. 

 
In addition, the Pensions Committee resolved to: 
 

7. Note the progress of the Investment Sub Group from September 2021 to 
November 2021; 
 

8. Note the performance of the Fund over the quarter; and 
 

9. Agree the proposed work programme of the Investment Sub Group for the next 
reporting period, including to continue planning and implementation of the changes 
required and research of available opportunities for investment to enable the Fund 
to achieve the Target Investment Strategy. 
 
 

 

34



 

 PENSION FUND RISKS   Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Target DOT  
 

CORPORATE RISK PROFILE 
(Risk Score = Likelihood x Impact) 

1 1.1. Information security arrangements 15 15 15 15 15  Impact 

Likelihood 

 
1 

Insignificant 

 
2 

Minor 

 
3 

Moderate 

 
4 

Major 

 
5 

Most severe 

5 
Very 

Likely 

     

4 
Likely 

  1.6   

3 
Possible 

 2.3  3.3 1.1 

2 
Unlikely 

 1.3; 1.7; 

2.4; 2.5 

1.2; 1.4; 

1.8; 3.2 

1.5; 2.2; 

3.1 

 

1 
Very 

unlikely 

   2.6 2.1 

Summary of risk changes 
since last report to 
Pensions Committee 

Emerging Risks  

New risks added in Q3: 

▪ No new risks have been added 
to the risk register in Q3. 

Risks removed in Q3: 

▪ No risks have been removed 
from the risk register in Q3. 

Risk Score Changes in Q3: 

▪ Target score for Information 
Security Arrangements has 
been increased from 10 to 15 
reflecting the risk of a cyber 
attack. 

▪ LPPA performance risk score 
has reduced from 9 to the target 
score of 6 reflecting good 
results against performance 
indicators. 

 

 

▪ There remain two emerging risks as at 
December 2021:  

▪ Local Government Reorganisation (LGR): 
The Fund is currently considering the 
impact of LGR within Cumbria being mindful 
of the need to continue to ensure sound and 
secure investment of the Fund’s assets, and 
that pensions continue to be paid and 
contributions collected in a timely way.  

▪ Climate Change: Recent events have 
highlighted the potential for climate change 
to impact global financial markets and 
investment assets. Although the scale and 
extent is not clear and could be influenced 
by many factors including future regulatory 
changes, the Cumbria Pension Fund 
recognise that climate change should be 
acknowledged as a key emerging risk. 

 

▪  

 

2 1.2. Pensions administration processes 9 9 9 6 6 
  

3 1.3. Scheme member communication 4 4 4 4 4  

4 1.4. Data quality 6 6 6 6 3  

5 1.5. Payment of contributions 8 8 8 8 8  

6 1.6. McCloud Judgement 12 12 12 12 9  

7 1.7 Scam Detection & Prevention 4 4 4 4 4  

8 1.8 COVID-19 impact on Pensions Admin. 6 6 6 6 6  

9 2.1. Pension Regulator Intervention 5 5 5 5 5  

10 2.2. Regulatory changes 8 8 8 8 8  

11 2.3. Financial irregularity 6 6 6 6 6  

12 2.4 Loss of key personnel 4 4 4 4 4  

13 2.5. Conflicts of Interest 4 4 4 4 4  

14 2.6 Operational disaster 4 4 4 4 4  

15 3.1 Investment performance 8 8 8 8 8  

16 3.2 Availability of investment opportunities 6 6 6 6 6  

17 3.3 COVID-19 impact on investments 12 12 12 12 12  

        

Appendix 2

35



 

CUMBRIA LGPS & PENSION BOARD RISK REGISTER (January 2022) 
 
1. Scheme Administration 
 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

1.1 Fund & 
LPPA  

 
Senior 
Manager  

 

Information Security 
Arrangements 
 
There is a risk that the Council 
will experience a significant 
information security incident. 
 
Caused by a concerted cyber 
attack on Council or LPPA 
systems, inadequate information 
security arrangements, lack of 
training, awareness or human 
error. 
  
Resulting in partial or total 
interruption to service delivery to 
scheme members, scheme 
employers, Fund Officers or 
LPPA.  
 
Disclosure of personal data or a 
data breach leading to financial 
penalties, liability claims and 
reputational damage   
 

 

15 
(5x3) 

 
DOT 

 

 

 

 

15 
(5x3) 

 

Previously 

10 
(5x2) 

  

Cumbria County Council (CCC) – Corporate Risk 
 

• The County Council maintains a detailed 
corporate risk register including the risk 
associated with Information Security 
Arrangements. 

• The Fund adheres to the controls and 
measures in place detailed within the Corporate 
Risk Register. 

• All staff within the team have completed the 
Information Security and Data Protection e-
learning training which is renewed on an annual 
basis. All Members have received training on 
information security. 

• The Fund is compliant with the requirements of 
the Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA18). 

• Any data breaches by officers within the Fund 
are reported through the Council’s data breach 
processes and also recorded on the Fund’s 
breach register. 

• In the event of systems being interrupted, the 
Council will implement the relevant Business 
Continuity Plan to ensure service continuity in a 
timely manner. 

• Information security controls within the Council 
have strengthened and have been 
independently assessed in the following 3 
areas: 

• GDPR: ‘Substantial Assurance’ Internal 
Audit opinion Jun 2019 

Cumbria County Council  

 
• All staff, elected Members and Pension Board 

members are required to complete on-line data 
security training with a new module launched 
for 2021/22. 

• The Fund is currently commissioning work to be 
undertaken to assess its cyber security and its 
readiness for a cyber incident. It is expected 
that a presentation will be made to the Local 
Pension Board in due course as to the findings 
of this review.  

 

 
Local Pension Partnership Administration 
(LPPA):  
 

• Activities are underway to refresh the Group’s 
Cyber Essentials certification together with 
obtaining Cyber Essentials Plus certification. 

 

• LPPA’s ‘Secure-Score’ is currently delivering 
improvements, primarily delivered through:  

• Increased monitoring alerts and 
notifications of cyber security events, 
through use of Microsoft Identity monitoring 
& Cloud Application Security tooling.  

• Introduction of control policies which 

Appendix 2

36



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

• Cyber Security: ‘Reasonable Assurance’ 
Internal Audit opinion Jun 2019 

• PSN: Annual independent PSN 
Accreditation confirmed on 31 March 2021 

• The annual 2021 ICT health check has 
been successfully completed during July 
2021. The report will be submitted in 
support of the PSN accreditation process 
during January 2022. 

• All National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) 
configuration guidance is adhered too where 
appropriate and assured as part of the PSN 
process. 

• All NCSC cyber monitoring tools are 
implemented. 

• in the event of a Cyber Attack the Administering 
Authority will notify the appropriate government 
agencies (including Action Fraud, National 
Cyber Security Centre(NCSC) and the Ministry 
of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG)) and their guidance will 
be adhered to. The Fund would never make 
any payment to a third party claiming 
responsibility for breaching the Fund’s security 
arrangements. 

 
Local Pension Partnership Administration 
(LPPA):  

• Cyber security risks and controls in place  

• Services backed up to tape every night and 
held off site. Disaster recovery plan is tested 
twice yearly.  

• Networks protected by fire walls to prevent 
unauthorised access. Intrusion Prevention 

manage detection of unsanctioned 
applications.  

• Reviews of administrative privileges & 
compliance to Multi Factor Authentication 
(MFA) Policies. 

 

Appendix 2

37



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

Systems are in place and penetration tests are 
completed annually. 

1.2 Fund & 
LPPA 

Senior 
Manager 

Pensions’ Administration 
Processes 
 
There is a risk of delays in 
scheme members entering into 
pension or receiving other 
services from the Fund in an 
untimely manner.   
 
Caused by organisational 
restructure within LPPA & 
personnel changes and the need 
for retraining. 
   
Resulting in customer 
dissatisfaction with the service. 

 

 

6 
(3x2) 

 
 

DOT 

 

Previously 

9 
(3x3) 

 

 

6 
(3x2) 

 
Formal agreement in place with Lancashire County 
Council for the discharge of pension administration 
functions through Local Pensions Partnership 
Administration (LPPA). This confirms Lancashire 
will exercise the same skill, care and diligence they 
would apply to the discharge of their own functions 
in relation to the administration of pensions. 
 
Formal quarterly meetings of LPPA and Cumbria 
LGPS officers to review and consider standards of 
service provision against LPPA internal KPIs. 
Regular (at least quarterly meeting) of operational 
group and ongoing dialogue with officers at LPPA 
throughout the year. LPPA host an annual Client 
Forum providing officers the opportunity to engage 
with representatives from other Funds. 
 
The Operations Director of LPPA attends all 
Cumbria Local Pension Board meetings and 
provides an update on performance and areas for 
development.  
 
Internal audit assurance is provided annually by 
Lancashire County Council that internal controls 
with LPPA over the operation and administration of 
the pension fund’s data are adequate and effective. 
 
LPPA also maintains its own internal audit 
programme and advise Officers of the findings of 
these reports. 

 
Officers continue to closely review LPPA 
performance specifically with regard to the 
experience received by scheme members.  
 
Specific issues relating to COVID-19 are addressed 
in risk 1.8 – “COVID-19 – Impact on Pensions’ 
Administration”. 
 
 
 

Appendix 2

38



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

1.3 Fund & 
LPPA 

Senior 
Manager 

Scheme Member 
Communication  
 
There is a risk that scheme 
members will not receive 
appropriate communication from 
the Fund. 
 
Caused by not having an 
effective Communication 
Strategy in place or engagement 
strategy or inaccurate / 
incomplete data 
 
Resulting in customer 
dissatisfaction and non- 
compliance with the Pension 
Regulator’s Code of Practice 14.  

 
4 

(2x2)  
 

DOT 

 

 
4 

(2x2)  
 
 

 

 

 
The Fund’s Communication Policy details the 
process by which it will communicate with members 
of the Scheme. This policy is reviewed at least 
annually. 
 
The ‘My Pension Online’ (MPO) tool is a key 
mechanism through which LPPA communicates 
with members and work is ongoing to increase the 
percentage of members signing up to this. 
 
LPPA have confirmed that 100% of 2021 Annual 
Benefit Statements were issued in advance of the 
statutory deadline of 31 August 2021. 
 

 
LPPA and the Fund produce an annual newsletter 
for active members and pensioners including details 
of the pension scheme and specific information of 
relevance to members.  
 
MPO is promoted by the Fund and LPPA to attempt 
to increase take up of this self-serve pensions tool. 

1.4 Employer
s and 
Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

Data Quality 
 
There is a risk that member data 
is incomplete or inaccurate. 
 
This could be caused by poor 
internal controls within the Fund 
and scheme employers with 
information not being passed to 
LPPA in a timely manner.  
 
This could result in having an 
impact on the production of 
Annual Benefit Statements for 
scheme members and the 
Triennial Valuation of the Fund 

 

6 

(3 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

 

3 

(3 x 1) 

 
Internal audit work undertaken on LPPA controls to 
provide assurance that internal controls over the 
operation and administration Cumbria’s data are 
adequate and effective (annually). 
 
Monthly reconciliation of employer contributions to 
data submitted by employers. 
 
Quarterly LPPA key performance indicators include 
measures of timeliness of update of records. 
 
Employer responsibilities are set out in the 
Administration Policy and this is regularly reinforced 
by officers through a range of communication 
channels. 

 
Planned improvements to data quality are reviewed 
and scrutinised on a quarterly basis by the Local 
Pension Board as requested by the Pensions 
Committee.  
 
 

Appendix 2

39



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

which then impacts onto 
employer contributions. 

  
 

1.5 Employer
s & Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

 

Payment of contributions 

There is a risk that employers 
fail to pay contributions (or the 
correct level of contributions) 
into the scheme. 

This could be caused by 
employer error, business failure 
or the general impact of 
increases in employer 
contribution rates 

This could result in a financial 
loss the Fund which may impact 
on all other employers, and may 
constitute a breach reportable to 
the Pensions Regulator. 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

 

 
Monthly monitoring of contribution payments by 
employer to ensure contributions received are 
timely and accurate. This reconciliation is 
considered as part of the annual audit process. 
 
Late payments are reported to Pensions Committee 
and the Local Pension Board at each quarterly 
meeting. 
 
New admission bodies to the Fund are required to 
be backed by a guarantee or a bond. 
 
 

 
Monitoring and reconciliation of contributions 
continue to be undertaken monthly and a full 
reconciliation is completed and checked as part of 
the year end process. 
 
Where appropriate, guarantees will be called in to 
ensure all contributions are appropriately collected 
by the Fund. 
 
 

1.6 Employer
s & Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

 

McCloud Judgement 

There is a risk that the Fund is 
unable to adequately comply 
with required administration 
processes arising from the 
resolution of the McCloud 
judgement.  

This could be caused by 
employers not having historic 
employment data for affected 
members; LPPA not having 

 

12 

(3 x 4) 

DOT 

 

 

9 

(3 x 3) 

 

 
A consultation to the proposed resolution to the 
McCloud judgment was issued by MHCLG in July 
2020. The Fund responded to this consultation and 
is currently awaiting the government’s response. 
 
The Fund will be monitoring announcements from 
the Scheme Advisory Board as to additional 
information required from employers and additional 
workstreams for the Fund and LPPA. 
 
The Fund is reviewing this risk with LPPA through 
its usual monitoring meetings and will be making 

 
The Fund and LPPA are currently reviewing the 
proposed resolution related to McCloud to try to 
assess the scale and scope of additional work.  
 
The Fund will continue to ensure employers are 
appropriately briefed as to any additional 
information from them and will be working closely 
with LPPA to identify what additional workload is 
required.  
 
Planned improvements will be reported to Pensions 
Committee and the Local Pension Board when 

Appendix 2

40



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

appropriate resource to 
undertake the work; the Fund 
having insufficiently capacity to 
adequately review the results; or 
insufficient budget to fund the 
required project work. 

This could result in legal 
breaches reportable to the 
Pensions Regulator; incorrect 
pension entitlements being 
calculated for pensioners; and 
loss of credibility with scheme 
members and employers. 

preparations for managing the additional workloads. 
 
 

there is greater clarity as to what is required from 
the Fund. 

1.7 Employer
s & Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

 

Scam Detection & Prevention 

There is a risk that a Scheme 
Member could be the victim of 
fraud.  

This could be caused by the 
Scheme Member being 
exploited into transferring their 
pension from the LGPS to a 
bogus or unsuitable pension 
scheme.  

This could result in the Scheme 
Member losing their pension or 
being at financial loss. This 
could also result in the 
Regulator finding against the 
Fund and requiring it to make 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

DOT 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

 

 
The Fund complies with the Code of Good Practice 
and the Pensions Regulator’s guidance.  
 
Pension transfers requests are reviewed against a 
“Safe list” of pension providers, known to be 
legitimate, whilst ensuring the transfer is not to a 
cloned company. 
 
Due diligence checks and forms provided by the 
Local Government Association are used to request 
detailed due diligence for pension providers not on 
the Safe List. 
 
Where necessary LPPA will undertake further 
checks at Companies House, HMRC, checking the 
receiving pension provider’s Scheme rules. 
 
LPPA has become the first organisation to join the 
Pension Scams Industry Group’s (PSIG’s) Pension 

 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 
to mitigate the risk of a scheme member being the 
victim of fraud through the transfer out of their 
pension.  
 
 

Appendix 2

41



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

good the losses experienced by 
the Scheme Member.  

Scams Industry Forum (PSIF). The forum is held on 
a monthly basis to share knowledge of schemes, 
companies and individuals of concern, and forms a 
“crucial part” of the work undertaken by PSIG. The 
forum is used to help identify and track the 
techniques and approaches of scammers and how 
they are evolving. Findings from the forum are 
shared with regulators and the police through 
representation on Project Bloom. 
 
The Fund’s annual newsletter to scheme members 
included specific sections on scam awareness and 
cyber security. 
 

1.8 Employer 
LPPA & 
Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

 

COVID-19 Impact on 
Pensions’ Administration 

There is a risk that COVID-19 
could have an impact on the 
delivery of pensions 
administration services within 
the Fund.  

This could be caused by 
resourcing issues within LPPA, 
the Fund or individual employers 
such as staff sickness, excess 
workloads e.g. increased death 
cases, furloughed staff within 
Fund employers etc.  

This could result in poor 
administration across the Fund 
including failure to pay pensions 

 

6 

(3 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

 

6 

(3 x 2) 

 

 
Staff of the Fund and at LPPA currently remain 
working from home where possible. 
 
Staff resources has been focused on providing 
essential administration services including payment 
of monthly payroll and processing payments 
payable following the notified death of scheme 
members. 
 
A new telephone service suitable for home working 
arrangements was procured by LPPA in 2020 to 
ensure an enhanced service for scheme members. 

 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 
to mitigate the risk of a significant effect on the 
ability of the Fund to provide an effective pensions 
administration service for the Fund including the 
payment of the monthly pension payroll, and 
compliance with regulatory requirements. 

Appendix 2

42



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

to scheme members, payment 
of contributions by employers to 
the Fund and other adherence 
to regulatory requirements  

 

Appendix 2

43



 

2. Governance & Regulation 
 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

2.1 Fund 

 
Senior 
Manager  

 

Pensions Regulator 
Intervention 
 
There is a risk that the Fund 
commits a serious regulatory 
breach  
 
This could be caused by the Fund 
failing to advise the Regulator of 
regulatory matter (e.g. reporting a 
breach, submitting the Scheme 
Return) or failing to implement 
new regulations. 
 
This could result in a detrimental 
effect to the service being 
provided to scheme members and 
employers. It could also result in 
serious reputational implications 
for the Fund and potentially a 
financial penalty. 
 

 

5 
(5x1) 

 
DOT 

 

 

 

5 
(5x1) 

 

 
The Fund is appropriately resourced with well 
trained and knowledgeable staff who understand 
their regulatory obligations to the Pensions 
Regulator and other statutory bodies. 
 
The Senior Manager ensures that staff take the time 
to consider upcoming deadlines and prioritise 
workloads accordingly. 
 
The Fund has good contacts with other LGPS 
Funds, the LGA, CIPFA and other bodies to ensure 
that it is aware of changing regulations and their 
impact to the Fund. 
 
The Pensions Committee and Local Pension Board 
are advised on new regulations and emerging 
issues at each meeting.  
 

 
Officers will continue to “horizon scan” to 
understand emerging issues that may have an 
impact on the future of the Fund. Where 
appropriate, the Pensions Committee and Local 
Pension Board will continue to be appraised of any 
emerging issues. For example, on this agenda, 
Members are advised of two consultations 
responded to by the Fund during the quarter. 
 
The Fund is currently undertaking its annual 
assessment of training needs of each Member. The 
results of this assessment will inform the 2022/23 
Training Plan for the Fund to be approved by the 
Pensions Committee. Officers will arrange for 
training to be available to all members (including 
substitutes) of the Pensions Committee and Local 
Pension Board throughout the year to ensure that 
Members have the appropriate skills and knowledge 
to take informed decisions at each meeting. 
 

2.2 Fund 
 
Senior 
Manager 

Regulatory Changes 
 
There is a risk that the LGPS is 
mandated to invest in particular 
markets or risks that may 
otherwise impact onto the 
sovereignty of the Fund. 
 
This may be caused by 
government policy or 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

 
Officers of the Fund respond to government 
consultations where relevant to help influence 
policy. 
  
Where relevant, the Fund will support lobbying or 
lobby directly to ensure that its voice is heard in the 
development of national policy. 
 
Officers within the Fund ensure that they are aware 

 
Officers of the Fund will continue to monitor the 
LGPS environment to be aware of any potential 
changes to the scheme.  
 
Where appropriate, officers will draft responses to 
consultations affecting the Fund and consult with 
the Chair of the Pensions Committee before 
submission. 
 

Appendix 2

44



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

amendments to regulations. 
 
This may result in the funding 
level of the Fund being affected 
which could materially impact 
employer contributions. 
 

of impending amendments to regulations and 
advise Pensions Committee and the Local Pension 
Board (and, where relevant, employers and scheme 
members) in a timely way as to any amendments 
and their impact to the Fund. 

 

2.3 Fund 
 
Senior 
Manager 

Financial Irregularity 

There is a risk of fraud, fraudulent 
behaviour, or unintentional 
overpayments. Additionally, there 
is the risk of financial loss due to 
corporate activities in companies 
that the Fund has equity holdings 
in. 
 
This may be caused by fraudulent 
activity unintentional 
overpayments, or 
misunderstanding 
 
Failure to address financial 
irregularity may result in a 
financial loss to the Fund and 
scheme employers, as well as 
reputational damage to the 
Council. 

 

6 

(2 x 3) 

DOT 

 

 

6 

(2 x 3) 

 
Fraudulent Activity – Active participation in the 
National Fraud Initiative reduces likelihood of 
unidentified deaths and fraudulent pension claims. 
 
Segregation of duties and a delegated scheme of 
authority minimises the risk of fraud within the Fund. 
 
Unintentional overpayments – The NFI activity 
may identify overpayments where no fraudulent 
activity has arisen, but a benefactor has 
unintentionally benefited from the Fund, e.g. 
payments continuing to be made to a widow(er) 
following the death of their partner. In such 
instances, officers act compassionately whilst still 
protecting the assets of the Fund. 
 
Tax and class action recoveries – Fund has 
specialist providers for key recovery areas such as 
tax and class actions. 
 

 
In December 2021, Officers were advised through 
the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) of 15 cases of 
overpayment due to the death of scheme members. 
These cases are currently being reviewed by LPPA. 
 
Note: cases identified through the NFI do not 
necessarily constitute a fraud, but do represent 
areas where there is a discrepancy between the 
Fund’s information and data from the government 
agencies. 
 

2.4 Fund 
 
Senior 
Manager 

Loss of key personnel 
 
There is a risk that the Fund may 
lose key personnel. 
 
This risk could be caused by staff 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

 
The Fund is appropriately resourced and has 
effective arrangements in place to cover for short 
term absence. Managers consider succession 
planning for key staff within the team. 
 

 
The risk of the loss of key personnel was identified 
as a risk to the Fund by the Pensions Regulator as 
part of its cohort review of the LGPS. 
 
A new external appointment within the Fund from 

Appendix 2

45



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

retiring, moving on or otherwise 
being on long-term absence. 
 
This could result in an erosion of 
skills and knowledge within the 
Fund 

DOT 

 

A comprehensive skills needs assessment is 
undertaken each year for all Officers and members 
of the Pensions Committee and Local Pension 
Board and a training plan is developed to address 
any areas for improvement. 
 
The Fund has recourse to the independent 
expertise of two advisors and has the resource to 
procure additional external support as required. 
 

October 2021 has given scope to help mitigate the 
risk of key personnel risk and improve resilience 
across the team. 
 
 

2.5 Fund  
 
Senior 
Manager 

Conflicts of interest 
 
There is a risk that conflicts of 
interest in the governance of the 
Fund may detrimentally affect 
decision making. 
 
This could be caused by those 
involved with the governance of 
the Fund being influenced by 
interests outside of the Fund. 
 
This could result in decisions 
being taken that are detrimental 
to the Fund. 
 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

4 

(2 x 2) 

 
Pensions Committee:  All Committee members 
with voting rights have signed up to the Council’s 
Code of Conduct which covers registration of 
interests. Disclosure of interests is a standing item 
on the Pensions Committee agenda.  
 
Local Pension Board: all members have signed up 
to the Board’s Code of Conduct and Conflicts of 
interest policy (which are aligned to those of the 
Council). At each meeting, members are asked to 
disclose any changes to their situation. 
 
All interests are recorded and published on the 
Council’s website. 
 
If appropriate legal advice can be sought as to any 
potential conflicts of interest within the Fund. 
 
 

 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 
to mitigate the risk of conflicts of interest but this 
position will be kept under review. 
 
Any potential conflicts of interest are declared at the 
commencement of each meeting and these are 
declarations are included in the minutes of each 
meeting.  
 
All members of the Local Pension Board and 
Pensions Committee are aware of how to manage 
potential conflicts. If there is doubt members of the 
Board and Committee may seek advice from the 
respective Chair or the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 
 
The Fund will review statutory guidance or 
amended Regulations arising from the Good 
Governance Review to ensure it continues to fully 
comply with its obligations to report on potential 
conflicts within the Fund. 
 

2.6 Fund & 
LPPA 

Operational Disaster 
 

   
CCC: Business continuity procedures are in place 

 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 

Appendix 2

46



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

 
Senior 
Manager 

There is a risk that an operational 
disaster may impact onto the 
Fund.  
 
This could be caused by fire / 
flood / extreme weather events 
etc. 
  
This could result in the Fund not 
being able to operate effectively. 
 

4 

(4 x 1) 

DOT 

 

4 

(4 x 1) 

for the scheme manager (CCC). These are tested 
corporately in accordance with CCC policies and 
procedures. 
 
Administration (LPPA): 
LPPA have business continuity procedures in place 
for Pensions administration. These are reviewed by 
Lancashire County Council’s emergency planning 
services which provide a QA function by in respect 
of individual service plans. 
 
 

to mitigate the risk of conflicts of interest but this 
position will be kept under review. Where 
weaknesses are identified, these will be addressed 
to improve the Fund’s preparedness for operational 
disaster. 
 

 

 

Appendix 2

47



 

3. Investments 
 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

3.1 Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

Investment performance 
 
There is a risk that market 
movement or investment failure 
impacts onto employer 
contributions to the Fund. 
 
This could be caused by a global 
decline in financial markets or 
Cumbria investing in products that 
perform poorly. 
 
This could result in a decrease in 
the fund value and lead to a 
material increase in employer 
contributions at the next triennial 
valuation. 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

DOT 

 

 

8 

(4 x 2) 

 
Adherence to the Fund’s Investment Strategy 
ensures that the assets of the Fund are invested in 
a diverse portfolio of investments. This mitigates the 
risk of market movement having a direct impact on 
the value of the Fund. 
 
Potential new investments are closely scrutinised by 
officers and Fund Advisers to assess if the product 
meets the investment criteria of the Fund (including 
risk and forecast return). Potential new investments 
are then proposed to the Investment Sub Group (or 
Pensions Committee if above 5% of the Fund’s 
portfolio) for further consideration and a funding 
decision. 
 
The Fund will continue with its approach to 
Responsible Investing (including climate change) by 
not divesting from any specific sector (e.g. fossil 
fuels) or investing in any specific sector (e.g. 
renewable clean energy). Instead it considers it 
appropriate to have a diverse portfolio of assets that 
can maximise return whilst seeking to mitigate 
investment risks.  
 

 
The existing procedures are considered appropriate 
to mitigate the risk that market movement or 
investment failure may impact materially onto 
employer contribution rates. 
 
 

3.2 Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

Availability of Investments 
Opportunities 
 
There is a risk that there are 
insufficient opportunities available 
to the Fund to fully implement its 
investment strategy. 

 

6 

(3 x 2) 

DOT 

 

6 

(3 x 2) 

 
The Investment Strategy Statement sets out the 
asset classes that the Fund is prepared to invest in. 
A revised strategy was approved by the Pensions 
Committee in December 2019 and this was 
subsequently updated in March 2021. 
 

 
The existing relationship with BCPP is considered 
appropriate to mitigate the risk that insufficient 
investment opportunities will be available for the 
Fund to fully implement its Investment Strategy.  
 
 

Appendix 2

48



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

  
This could be caused by Border 
to Coast Pensions Partnership 
Ltd (BCPP) not offering suitable 
sub-funds to enable the 
Investment Strategy to be 
implemented in a timely manner. 
 
This could result in the Fund not 
being able to fully implement the 
investment strategy in a timely 
manner. 

 

 

The Fund is working with BCPP to ensure that 
appropriate sub-funds are available to be able to 
fully implement the current Investment Strategy.  
 
It has been recognised that some elements of the 
revised Strategy will take time to implement. It has 
therefore been agreed that, where target asset 
classes take time to invest, the amounts destined 
for these assets are temporarily invested in an 
interim strategy which more closely reflects the 
agreed target Strategy.  This will result in achieving 
a lower risk position more quickly.   

3.3 Fund 

Senior 
Manager 

COVID-19 - Impact on 
Investments 
 
There is a risk that the current 
turbulence in the investment 
markets could impact onto 
employer contribution rates 
payable to the Fund. 
  
This could be caused by market 
turbulence having a significant 
negative effect on the Funding 
Value of the Fund and individual 
employers. 
 
This could result in employer 
contribution rates increasing at 
the 2022 valuation or the Actuary 
proposing a mid-term adjustment 
to contribution rates before 2022. 

 

12 

(4 x 3) 

DOT 

 

 

 

12 

(4 x 3) 

 

 
In order to protect Fund solvency and the 
affordability of employer contribution rates, the Fund 
seeks to dampen investment risk and deliver stable 
investment returns over the longer-term by investing 
in a diverse portfolio of assets.  
  
The Fund’s long-term approach to investment and 
its diverse portfolio of investment assets meant that, 
whilst it was affected by the significant market 
movements, the impact on performance was not as 
extreme as that experienced in any one asset class 
alone. 
 
In 2020/21 Q1 the Fund commissioned a “sense 
check” of the Investment Strategy Statement for its 
suitability in light of the current market environment 
following the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on 
financial markets. The results of this sense check 
were reviewed by ISG in September 2020 and 
again in February / March 2021.  The resulting 
proposed Target Investment Strategy was approved 

 
The existing Fund policies (including the Investment 
Strategy Statement) are considered appropriate to 
mitigate the risk that market movement or 
investment failure may impact materially onto 
employer contribution rates. 
 
 

Appendix 2

49



 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk 
Owner 

Risk Title & Description  

Current 
Risk 

Score 
DOT 

 
Target 
Score 

Current Controls & Measures in Place  
Planned Improvements to controls and 

measures to manage the risk  

(Impact x Likelihood) 

by Pensions Committee in March 2021. 
 

 
Note: An upward arrow on the Direction of Travel represents an increase in the risk score since the previous quarter – hence either the potential impact or 
the likelihood of the risk occurring has increased. 
 
Similarly, a downward arrow on the Direction of Travel represents a decrease in the risk score since the previous quarter – hence either the potential impact or 
the likelihood of the risk occurring has decreased. 
 

 
 

Appendix 2

50



Document is Restricted

51

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

99

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Terms of Reference and Membership
	5 Minutes
	6 Schedule of Future Meetings
	7 Oversight of Pension Committee Decisions and other matters
	Appendix 1: Decisions made by the Cumbria Pensions Committee on 10 December 2021.
	Appendix 2 Risk register for Cumbria LGPS & LPB at January 2022

	10 Review of Administration Matters
	Appendix 1 - LPPA Quarterly Performance Report to 30 September 2021
	Appendix 2 - Employer Compliance with Regulation & Policy 1 July – 30 September 2021


